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COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER RELIEF 22,

Plaintiff, Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”) alleges that:

INTRODUCTION

1) The Commission brings this action to restrain and enjoin The Strategies Group,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“TSG”) and Stuart A. Slonin (“Slonin”) (collectively,
“Defendants”) from continuing to violate the federal securities laws through their efforts to sell
non-existent securities. From at least July 2000 through August 2001, TSG, through its principal
Slonin, made numerous material misrepresentations and omissions to prospective investors
regarding securities in various “International Trading Programs” (“ITP”’), which were purported
to exist. In fact, the ITP was a complete fabrication and the purported securities are a species of
non-existent “prime bank instruments.” Prime-bank scams have emerged periodically over the
past decade and Defendants’ ITP vary little from the common formula: they prey on the
optimism and naiveté of individuals who believe that secret investment opportunities previously

available only to the super-rich are finally being revealed to the middle class. The Commission

Py
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seeks permanent injunctions and civil money penalties against Slonin and TSG to enjoin further
violations of Sections 17(a)(1), 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities
Act”) and Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-
5 thereunder.

DEFENDANTS

2) Slonin, age 59, resides in Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Upon information and belief,
Slonin has been the principal of TSG at all times. Since 1971, Slonin has been licensed in the
State of Florida to sell life and health insurance products.

3) TSG was incorporated in Florida in 1995 and administratively dissolved in 1997
for failing to file its annual report. TSG was then incorporated in Delaware in August 2001.
Upon information and belief, TSG is the name used by Slonin in connection with his insurance
seminars and with the ITP.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4) This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b), 20(d) and
22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77t(b), 77t(d) and 77v(a)] and Sections 21(d), 21(e),
and 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u(e) and 78aa].

5) Defendants, directly and indirectly, made use of the means and instrumentalities
of interstate commerce, the means and instrumentalities of transportation and communication in
interstate commerce, and the mails, or the facilities of a national securities exchange, in
connection with the acts, practices, and courses of conduct complained of herein.

6) Defendants’ acts and practices which constitute violations of the Securities Act and
the Exchange Act, and the offers, purchases and sales of securities, described herein, occurred

within the Southern District of Florida.
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7) The units in the ITP offered by Defendants are securities as the term is defined in
Section 2(a)(1) of the Securities Act and Section 3(a)(10) of the Exchange Act.
FACTS

Slonin’s and TSG’s Representations About the ITP

8) From at least July 2000 through August 2001, Slonin prepared and distributed
documents detailing the ITP (“TSG marketing materials”) at seminars he conducted for
insurance professionals in Fort Lauderdale, Florida.

9) The TSG marketing materials describe a number of different programs that
typically required minimum investments between $10,000,000 to $100,000,000, and promised
different returns, generally ranging from 15-50% over periods ranging from 5 days to 40- weeks.
Certain special programs, however, were periodically available which offered lower minimum
investments and purported to return even higher yields.

10)  The TSG marketing materials explain that “all of the trading programs are
conducted under the specific guidelines set up by the International Chamber of Commerce
(“ICC”) [which] is the regulatory body in France for the World's great Money Center Banks and
is based in Paris, France [and which] exerts strict control over the world banking operation.”

Each “program involves the purchase and sale of LEVERAGED MTNs (Medium Term

Notes) in a controlled trading program for specified periods of time (known as 'time slots'). The
investment funds are secured by a bank endorsed guarantee to the trading program at the time the
funds are committed for the selected time period.” (emphases in original).

11)  All prospective investors were assured that “the International Trading Program
is a leverage program. As such, regardless of which bank the funds are in during the trading

cycle, the principal is NEVER at risk. That is the most important element of this program since

its establishment in 1944! The investor is 'leasing a paper asset' during the trading cycle. At
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the end of the cycle, the principal is returned and/or released back to the investor.” (emphases in
the original). With limited exceptions, the funds would be pooled with other investors’ funds to
create traunches large enough to support the substantial leverage.

12)  All investors in the trading programs were admonished to preserve the secrecy of
the programs and were “forbidden from disclosing any aspect of the transaction while they are
involved for a period of five years.”

13)  The TSG marketing materials explain that the ITP was established at the “Bretton
Woods Convention” in 1944 and has been available, through the “top 50 world banks” to very
wealthy and discreet individuals since that time. With limited exceptions, profits from the ITP
have to be used for “infrastructure” or humanitarian” purposes. “Interpole” (sic) conducts
background checks into investors to ensure that ineligible investors, such as drug dealers, money
launderers and banks, do not participate in these trading programs.

14) The TSG marketing materials identify TSG as having more than 20 years
experience with the ITP and as being one of only ten “Syndicating Intermediary Firms”
worldwide which offered the ITP.

15) At the seminars and on phone calls to seminar attendees, Slonin explained that the
precise rates of return for each investment would be set forth in documents which would be
provided to the investors after they had executed the confidentiality agreements and after
Interpol had cleared the investors’ funds to participate in the ITP.

The Truth About the ITP

16)  The ITP described in TSG’s marketing materials do not exist. No such programs
were established in Bretton Woods; the ICC neither oversees such programs nor does it control

the world’s banks. All assurances of safety of principal, guaranteed returns and use of proceeds
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were flatly false, as were all representations regarding Slonin and TSG’s experience with the
programs.

Slonin’s Solicitation of Investors and Sale of Prime Bank Instruments

17)  From July 2000 through August 2001, Slonin prepared and distributed the TSG
marketing materials at four seminars he conducted in Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Each seminar
was attended by 15-30 insurance agents, many of whom held securities licenses. Slonin also
made phone calls to seminar attendees who resided both within and outside of Florida to
continue soliciting interest. Slonin assured the attendees that the ITP did not involve securities,
that the SEC did not have jurisdiction over the ITP and that the agents should sell the ITP to their
clients and would receive a commission of 2% on the principal amount invested.

18)  From late September 2001 through at least October 4, 2001, Slonin faxed letters
to former seminar attendees announcing that TSG had ceased operations and that Slonin would
be refocusing his efforts from insurance to concentrate on “wealth planning and accumulation”
which expressly included the ITP.

19) In late September 2001, Slonin telephoned a prospective investor about the
investor’s intent to invest $11 million into one of TSG’s trading programs. Slonin advised the
investor to wire $100,000 to a bank account in the Isle of Jersey so that Interpol could commence
its investigation into the source of the funds. The investor would then have up to three weeks to
wire the remaining $10.9 million in order to complete the purchase. On or about October 1,
2001, the investor wired $100,000 as directed by Slonin.

20)  Slonin knew or was reckless in not knowing that his representations regarding the

existence of the ITP and the guaranteed returns on the investments were false.
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COUNT1

DEFENDANTS SLONIN AND TSG VIOLATED
SECTION 17(a)(1) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

21)  The Commission realleges and repeats the allegations set forth in Paragraphs 1
through 20 of this Complaint as if fully stated herein.

22)  From at least July 2000 through August 2001, Defendants Slonin and TSG,
directly or indirectly, by use of the means or instruments of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce and by use of the mails, in the offer or sale of securities, as described herein,
knowingly, willfully or recklessly employed devices, schemes or artifices to defraud.

23) By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Slonin and TSG, directly and indirectly,
violated and, unless enjoined, will continue to violate Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act, [15
U.S.C. § 77q(a)(1)].

COUNTII

DEFENDANTS SLONIN AND TSG VIOLATED
SECTIONS 17(a)(2) AND 17(a)(3) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

24)  The Commission realleges and repeats the allegations set forth in Paragraphs 1
through 20 of this Complaint as if fully stated herein.

25)  From at least July 2000 through August 2001, Defendants Slonin and TSG, and
each of them, singly and in concert, directly and indirectly, by use of the means or instruments of
transportation or communication in interstate commerce and by use of the mails, in the offer and
sale of the securities described herein, have been: (i) obtaining money or property by means of
untrue statements of material facts or omissions to state material facts necessary in order to make

the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
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and (ii) engaging in transactions, practices and courses of business which have operated as a
fraud or deceit upon purchasers of such securities.

26) By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Slonin and TSG, directly and indirectly,
have violated and, unless enjoined, will continue to violate Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the
Securities Act, [15 U.S.C. §§ 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)].

COUNT III

DEFENDANTS SLONIN AND TSG VIOLATED
SECTION 10(b) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT AND RULE 10b-5

27)  The Commission repeats and realleges paragraph 1 through 20 of its Complaint.

28)  From at least July 2000 through August 2001, Defendants Slonin and TSG,
directly and indirectly, by use of the means and instrumentality of interstate commerce, and of
the mails, and of any facility of any national securities exchange, in connection with the purchase
or sale of the securities, as described herein, have been, knowingly, willfully or recklessly: (a)
employing devices, schemes or artifices to defraud; (b) making untrue statements of material
facts and omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or (c) engaging in
acts, practices and courses of business which have operated as a fraud upon the purchasers of
such securities.

29) By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Slonin and TSG, directly or indirectly,
have violated and, unless enjoined, will continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act,

[15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)], and Rule 10b-5, [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], thereunder.
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RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court:
L.

Declaratory Relief

Declare, determine and find that Defendants Slonin and TSG committed the violations of

the federal securities laws alleged herein.
IL

Permanent Injunctive Relief

Issue a Permanent Injunction, restraining and enjoining Defendants Slonin and TSG, their
officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation
with them, and each of them, from violating Sections 17(a)(1), 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the
Securities Act, [15 U.S.C. §§ 77q(a)(1), 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)], and Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act, [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)], and Rule 10b-5, [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], thereunder.

II1.
Penalties

Issue an Order directing Defendants to pay civil money penalties pursuant to Section
20(d) of the Securities Act, [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)] and Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act, [15
U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)].

IVv.

Further Relief

Grant such other and further relief as may be necessary and appropriate.
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V.

Retention of Jurisdiction

Further, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court retain jurisdiction over this
action in order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and decrees that may hereby be
entered, or to entertain any suitable application or motion by the Commission for additional
relief within the jurisdiction of this Court.

Respectfully submitted,

July 9, 2002 M /W

JoHA R. Teakell '
Senior Trial Counsel
SD-FL Bar # A-5500517

Jennifer S. Byme
Branch Chief, Enforcement
Massachusetts Bar # 643156

Jason R. Berkowitz
Staff Attorney
Pennsylvania Bar #87775

Attorneys for Plaintiff

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
1401 Brickell Avenue, Suite 200

Miami, Florida 33131

Telephone:  305-536-4700

Facsimile: 305-536-7465
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